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          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON LANDMARKS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Good morning.

          3  Welcome to Landmarks, Public Siting and Maritime

          4  Uses. I am Council Member Jessica Lappin, the Chair,

          5  joined today by Council Member Miguel Martinez,

          6  Council Member Annabel Palma, Council Member Jimmy

          7  Vacca, Council Member Charles Barron, Council Member

          8  Leroy Comrie.

          9                 The first item on the agenda is a

         10  550-seat primary and intermediate school in Council

         11  Member Vacca's district, Bronx Community Board 11.

         12  The item, number 20065552 SCX. We have here to

         13  testify, Mr. Gregory Shaw from the School

         14  Construction Authority, and Julie Harnick from the

         15  Department of Education Office of New Schools. And

         16  we've also been joined by Council Member Jimmy Oddo.

         17                 MR. SHAW: Good morning, Chairperson

         18  Lappin, and Council members, thank you very much, my

         19  name is Gregory Shaw, I'm the principal attorney for

         20  real estate for the New York City School

         21  Construction Authority. And to my immediate left is

         22  Julie Harnick, who is Director of Finance for the

         23  Office of New Schools for the Department of

         24  Education.

         25                 Thanks so much for having us here
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          2  today to testify. The New York City School

          3  Construction Authority has undertaken the site

          4  selection process for the proposed 550-seat Primary

          5  and Intermediate School Facility that will be

          6  located on Tax Block 4091, Lot 1, in the Van Nest

          7  Section of the Bronx, on the southeast corner of Van

          8  Nest and Bronxdale Avenues.

          9                 The proposed school site is also

         10  located in the Department of Education, Region

         11  Number 2, Community School District No. 11, and

         12  Bronx Community Board No. 11.

         13                 The proposed site is an approximately

         14  33,000 square foot rectangular lot located at the

         15  southeast corner of Van Nest and Bronxdale Avenues,

         16  in the Van Nest Section of the Bronx.

         17                 The site contains an existing

         18  three-story warehouse building with a total of

         19  approximately 65,000 square feet of space.

         20                 Under the proposed project, the SCA

         21  would provide capital funding to Civic Builders, a

         22  not-for-profit Charter School developer to redevelop

         23  the site into a school facility that would

         24  accommodate an approximately 550-seat

         25  Primary/Intermediate Public School operated by the
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          2  Department of Education.

          3                 The building would also house an

          4  approximately 300-seat Charter School organization

          5  for grades five through eight, which is not included

          6  with this filing.

          7                 The Notice of Filing for the site

          8  plan was published in the New York Post and City

          9  Record on June 1st, 2006. Bronx Community Board No.

         10  11 was also notified of the site plan on that same

         11  date, June 1st, and was asked to hold a public

         12  hearing of the site plan.

         13                 Community Board No. 11 held its

         14  hearing on the proposed site plan on June 29th,

         15  2006, and subsequently submitted written comments in

         16  support of the site plan.

         17                 The City Planning Commission was also

         18  notified on that same day, June 1st, and it also

         19  recommended in favor of the site.

         20                 The SCA has considered all comments

         21  received on the proposed site plan, and affirms the

         22  site plan pursuant to Section 1731 of the Public

         23  Authorities Law. In accordance with Section 1732 of

         24  the Public Authorities Law the SCA submitted the

         25  proposed site plan to the Mayor and Council on
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          2  August 9th, 2006.

          3                 We look forward to your

          4  Subcommittee's favorable consideration of the

          5  proposed plan and we are here now to answer any

          6  questions that you may have.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: I wanted to at

          8  this point give Council Member Vacca the opportunity

          9  to ask some questions and to speak.

         10                 And to our colleagues who I assume

         11  have a copy of this letter that he has received from

         12  the Department of Education outlining the

         13  negotiations that took place regarding the school,

         14  and Council Member Vacca, I'd like to turn it over

         15  to you.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: Thank you,

         17  Council Member Lappin. And the letter before you,

         18  fellow members of the Council, summarizes

         19  discussions between my office, myself and DOE,

         20  commitments which I know will be kept. I want this

         21  letter entered into the record. This letter is

         22  important. Several phrases I want to pull out.

         23                 Paragraph one. The New York City

         24  Department of Education does not intend to house any

         25  additional school or programs at this facility.
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          2                 I want you to know what is here I

          3  take seriously and so does the community.

          4                 Relative to pre-kindergarten, we want

          5  to be involved in the consultative process, and

          6  there is an illusion later on to the fact that upon

          7  a vote of the community board or the School Planning

          8  Team, the pre-kindergarten classes here will be

          9  full-day classes. And I thank DOE. Originally pre-k

         10  was not included in the design for this school and

         11  it was added at my request, and I thank you for your

         12  responsiveness.

         13                 I also want you to know that while no

         14  programs beyond this school would be hot-housed here

         15  temporarily, which I alluded to before, the school

         16  is going to open with pre-k, K, first grade and

         17  sixth grade classes.

         18                 I think in the past we have had

         19  problems with DOE schools when we've opened them all

         20  at once for the entire K to 8 organization. It's

         21  been proven not to work, and I'm glad in this case

         22  that we will be phasing in operation of a school.

         23                 I think that's best when we talk

         24  about staff recruitment, it's best when we talk

         25  about students and parents.
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          2                 I specifically want to allude to,

          3  under "school enrollment," the first point, that the

          4  children now attending the three schools immediately

          5  adjoining the Van Nest School will have priority,

          6  and after that they will go to applicants in

          7  District 11. I anticipate that when you think of the

          8  overcrowded conditions in those three immediate

          9  schools, we will have enough applicants in those

         10  zones to fill the seats.

         11                 I'm also proud of the fact that we

         12  were able to add on page two, a gifted and talented

         13  program for my community. I don't think we do enough

         14  for children who are gifted and talented, and as

         15  part of our negotiation, a new first grade class

         16  will open in September 2007 at PS 121 in my

         17  community. That will be a test-based gifted program

         18  for children starting in grade one then progressing

         19  up every year, and that will be open to District 11

         20  children.

         21                 The Special Education class, I know

         22  there is a requirement at New York City DOE that all

         23  new schools have a Citywide District 75 Special

         24  Education Program, and working with DOE we

         25  identified the population that this program will
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          2  serve, which are children with autism spectrum

          3  disorder, and that is something that is acceptable

          4  to me and something that I know meets a need in the

          5  Borough of the Bronx and in my community.

          6                 Just several brief questions, the

          7  Percent for Art Project, we are eligible for a

          8  Percent for Art Project in the construction here?

          9                 MS. HARNICK: I had spoken with the

         10  people at Percent for Art --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Can you please

         12  identify yourself for the record.

         13                 MS. HARNICK: I'm Julie Harnick, the

         14  Department of Education, the Office of New Schools.

         15                 And I had spoken with the folks at

         16  Percent for Art and they had said that at this time

         17  that project was closed. So, it doesn't appear that

         18  we will be eligible for that program.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: Why would the

         20  project be closed? I thought it was a requirement

         21  with all new school buildings that a percent be set

         22  aside for art? This requirement goes back 20 years.

         23                 MS. HARNICK: From what I've gathered

         24  there are two phases of the project, and we're now

         25  in Phase II of the Percent for Art, and at this time
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          2  only new construction would be eligible.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: So, because

          4  you're rehabilitating an existing building --

          5                 MS. HARNICK: Yes.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: You would not

          7  be eligible.

          8                 Previously rehabilitations of

          9  existing buildings were eligible.

         10                 MS. HARNICK: Yes.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: Until recently?

         12                 MS. HARNICK: I don't know when Phase

         13  II began.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: We're talking

         15  Percent For Art is funded by capital dollars through

         16  the Department of Cultural Affairs; am I correct?

         17                 MS. HARNICK: I don't know whether

         18  it's funded by capital dollars.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: Do you know

         20  what agency?

         21                 MS. HARNICK: It is the Department of

         22  Cultural Affairs.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: The Department

         24  of Cultural Affairs, okay.

         25                 I also wanted to make note for my
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          2  colleagues on page one, we're talking of this school

          3  designated as a School-wide Enrichment Model, SEM.

          4  This is better known to many people as the Renzuli

          5  method of teaching, which basically identifies each

          6  and every child and where that child is gifted, and

          7  this program appeals to students in small groups,

          8  and deals with technology, it could deal with math,

          9  it could deal with art, science, we try to tap

         10  whatever the child really is gifted at and try to

         11  enhance and teach across the curriculum through that

         12  subject; am I correct?

         13                 MS. HARNICK: Yes.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER VACCA: Okay. And I

         15  know that program is working successfully in other

         16  schools, and although not enough, very, very few

         17  schools, but I think expanding it here was something

         18  that I was proud of negotiating. I think that's it.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you,

         20  Council Member Vacca. And I want to congratulate you

         21  on doing yeoman's work in negotiating the school

         22  program and planning issues, enrollment issues,

         23  other issues in terms of the District 75 school, you

         24  have worked incredibly hard and really put together

         25  what seems to be a very impressive package.
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          2                 Council Member Comrie.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: I also want to

          4  congratulate Councilman Vacca on making sure that

          5  the needs of his community board were met and his

          6  community met, and to do the due diligence to get

          7  the information out.

          8                 I'm just curious, who are Civic

          9  Builders, and have they built or put together any

         10  other schools before? And why is this the Authority

         11  providing capital funding to an outside group to

         12  build, to redevelop this particular site? And who is

         13  going to put together the Charter school?

         14                 MS. HARNICK: The Department of

         15  Education has a program that was worked on over the

         16  past few years, it's called the "Charter Partner

         17  Matching Program."

         18                 And the goal of it is to encourage

         19  private development of sites specifically for the

         20  construction of Charter schools. So, this is a dual

         21  use facility. So, we haven't spoken about the

         22  Charter portion, but that's essentially the reason

         23  why Civic Builders has been brought in. They're here

         24  today, if you would like to address one of them with

         25  any questions.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay. Have

          3  they built any other facilities in the City?

          4                 MS. HARNICK: I'd like to have Jill

          5  Crawford, who is the representative from Civic

          6  Builders who is on your list --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: From the Board

          8  of Ed side, if there's a default, there is a

          9  built-in protection to make sure that the Board of

         10  Ed takes over the construction to make sure it's

         11  done on time --

         12                 MS. HARNICK: Yes.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: With the

         14  proper bonding and insurance?

         15                 MS. HARNICK: Yes.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: And that's

         17  already built into the contract?

         18                 MS. HARNICK: Yes.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay.

         20                 And the 300-seat school is going to

         21  be done as part of the overall rehab?

         22                 MS. HARNICK: Yes.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay. I'll

         24  wait for the rest.

         25                 Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Okay, there are

          3  no other questions. We can move to the next witness,

          4  which is Ann Tirschwell, who is from Civic Builders.

          5                 MS. TIRSCHWELL: All right. So, I'm

          6  Ann Tirschwell. I'm the Director of Real Estate of

          7  Civic Builders, who are a not-for-profit real estate

          8  company, and all we do is build Charter schools, and

          9  most recently has focused on this Charter Facilities

         10  Fund that Department of Education has just referred

         11  to. We are finishing a project right now, a 43,000

         12  square foot school, Department of Education. Well,

         13  the Charter school, that will be deed transferred to

         14  the Department of Education in the Bronx, 1001

         15  Intervale Avenue.

         16                 That was the first project we've

         17  completed solely with Department of Education money,

         18  although we have also another school in the Bronx,

         19  which is approximately 25,000 square foot Charter

         20  school, which has been opened for approximately

         21  three years, and we have, those we have done as the

         22  developer, and we have also been a consultant to a

         23  number of Charter schools in the City that have

         24  opened without City funding. So, they're sort of a

         25  different breed of Charter school facility.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: But you're not

          3  building the 550-seat school?

          4                 MS. TIRSCHWELL: No, we'll be building

          5  the whole facility, and then the facility gets

          6  transferred to -- well, we buy the building, and

          7  then very soon thereafter transfer the ownership to

          8  the Department of Education. The funding agreement

          9  is being negotiated now, so, I can't tell you the

         10  exact date, but it's pretty soon, a month

         11  thereafter. And then we management the development

         12  of the project. We will get a project manager from

         13  the School Construction Authority, I believe, and

         14  the design and construction will be dictated by

         15  State law, the New York City School Construction

         16  Authority Law, so we're mandated to follow all

         17  procurement requirements the School Construction

         18  Authority has for their own construction. We'll be

         19  managing the process with them and for them.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: So, you'll build

         21  both the 550-seat and the 300-seat, although we're

         22  not approving today the Charter School.

         23                 MS. TIRSCHWELL: That's correct. It

         24  doesn't require the same approval process that the

         25  DOE seeks to, the Charter school piece doesn't.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Council Member

          3  Comrie.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Let me get

          5  this straight, you assess the need in the Bronx and

          6  you purchase the building and then you went to DOE?

          7                 MS. TIRSCHWELL: We're in the process

          8  of purchasing it. And prior to purchasing it, we

          9  brought the project to Department of Education, as

         10  part of this RFQ process for the Charter facilities

         11  fund dollars. We follow an RFQ process, so the

         12  building was larger than what we needed for pure

         13  Charter, but we knew there was a demand for seats in

         14  that part of the City, so when we brought the

         15  project to the Department of Education, they said,

         16  hey, this site can handle a lot more than just a

         17  Charter school piece, would you consider also

         18  developing it as a Department of Education school as

         19  well, which we thought was a great mix, because

         20  there would be also some symbiosis between the

         21  facility.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Are you one of

         23  the schools under the 100-school cap, or is this --

         24                 MS. TIRSCHWELL: Yes. Well, the

         25  Charter partner that we currently have, and the
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          2  funding agreement isn't all set, is working with the

          3  State, New York State Charter, the people that --

          4  the regents, to actually transfer a charter from a

          5  school that had failed to them. And they're in the

          6  process doing it with James Mariman (phonetic) from

          7  the State right now.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: So, I'm just

          9  trying to get a better handle on how this entity got

         10  started.

         11                 DOE identified you, or you identified

         12  DOE as a builder? Or as a Charter school provider?

         13                 MS. TIRSCHWELL: We've been working

         14  with the Department of Education for a number of

         15  years, and I would imagine -- I can't quite

         16  remember, I imagine we approached them. But, again,

         17  this would be our second project with DOE.

         18                 Although, we had been in the Charter

         19  school market, facilities marketplace prior to the

         20  City funding, so we've been working with Charter

         21  schools solely around facilities issues for a number

         22  of years.

         23                 And as the only not-for-profit real

         24  estate developer in that space, in that market, it

         25  became clear that we had garnered a lot of
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          2  information prior to the City funding, or this $250

          3  million of facilities funds. So, we came a natural

          4  partner with the Department of Education. But I

          5  guess --

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: I don't have a

          7  problem, I'm just trying to understand, because I

          8  have a lot of groups that would like to start

          9  Charters in my community, do you work with these

         10  groups, or you're a sole source entity?

         11                 MS. TIRSCHWELL: Well, as you know,

         12  there is this cap, this 100 Charters cap, and so

         13  currently the cap is still in place and I know that

         14  the Charter --

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: We're still

         16  trying to do planning and development, there's still

         17  a low-seat priority in a lot of areas.

         18                 MS. TIRSCHWELL: Absolutely.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: And I expect

         20  that the cap will be addressed sooner or later.

         21                 MS. TIRSCHWELL: Yes, hopefully sooner

         22  than later. But as it turns out, there's still

         23  schools, Charter schools that are in existence today

         24  that have facilities needs that either can or cannot

         25  be met by the current DOE facilities.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Right. But I

          3  have two in my district beyond the physical space

          4  that they presently occupy, and it has been mandated

          5  by DOE to find space; and so do you reach out?

          6                 MS. TIRSCHWELL: Charter schools

          7  typically know of us because we're the only

          8  not-for-profit out that they're trying to help them.

          9  So, we encourage all, and I can absolutely contact

         10  you afterwards and see if we can't contact them. But

         11  they should absolutely contact us, because --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: And you do

         13  have a track record for working with --

         14                 MS. TIRSCHWELL: With Charter schools

         15  both with and without DOE.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay, thank

         17  you. That was my main concern.

         18                 Thank you, Madam Chair.

         19                 Madam Chair, do you want me to ask

         20  more questions?

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: No.

         22                 Any other questions? Great. Thank you

         23  very much. The hearing on this item is closed.

         24                 I would like to open the hearing on

         25  the Claremont Theater Building, which is in Council
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          2  Member Jackson's district. Item No. 20065560.

          3  Council Member Jackson is in favor. And we have

          4  Diane Jackier here from the Landmarks Preservation

          5  Commission to testify.

          6                 And before she begins, I wanted to

          7  ask, there are three people who signed up to

          8  testify, but didn't indicate which item. Carmen

          9  Garner. Which item are you here to testify about?

         10                 (Not picked up by the microphone.)

         11                 Simeon Bankoff, what are you here

         12  for?

         13                 And Marie Bidell, you're here to

         14  testify on which item? DeHart House? Okay, thank

         15  you.

         16                 MS. JACKIER: Do you want me to start

         17  with Claremont?

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Yes.

         19                 MS. JACKIER: Okay, great.

         20                 My name is Diane Jackier, Director of

         21  External Affairs for the Landmarks Preservation

         22  Commission. I am here today to testify on the

         23  Commission's designation of the Claremont Theater in

         24  Manhattan.

         25                 On May 16th, 2006, the Landmarks
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          2  Commission held a public hearing on the proposed

          3  designation. Five people spoke in favor, including

          4  representatives of the owner, the Historic Districts

          5  Council, the Municipal Arts Society, Place Matters,

          6  and the Society for the Architecture of the City.

          7  There were no speakers in opposition to designation.

          8                 The Commission also received letters

          9  in support from City Council Member Robert Jackson

         10  and Manhattan Community Board 9. On June 6, 2006,

         11  the Commission voted to designate the building a New

         12  York City landmark.

         13                 The Claremont Theater building is one

         14  of the oldest structures in New York City planned

         15  specifically to exhibit motion pictures, originally

         16  called "photoplays." Located at the southeast corner

         17  of Broadway and 135th Street, the theater opened in

         18  November 1914. Commissioned by Arlington C. Hall and

         19  Harvey M. Hall of the Wayside Realty Company, it was

         20  designed in the neo-Renaissance style by Gaetano

         21  Ajello, an architect best-known for apartment

         22  buildings on Manhattan's Upper West Side.

         23                 The building has three distinct

         24  fronts, including a clipped corner facade where the

         25  auditorium's entrance was originally located. This
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          2  distinctive arrangement enhanced the theater's

          3  visibility and increased the amount of retail space.

          4  The corner, consequently, received the most

          5  elaborate decorative treatment and is embellished

          6  with an elegant low relief depicting an early motion

          7  picture camera set on a tripod. In 1915, Thomas

          8  Edison produced a short film in which the theater's

          9  entrance is prominently featured. Filmed from across

         10  Broadway, it depicts groups of men, women, and

         11  children exiting the building.

         12                 The second floor accommodated a large

         13  restaurant and ballroom, known under such names as

         14  the Broadway-Claremont or Clarendon Restaurant and

         15  later, the Royal Palms Ballroom and Roof Garden.

         16                 Until the early years of the

         17  Depression, area residents gathered here to eat,

         18  drink and dance. Beginning in the late 1920s, the

         19  storefronts were leased to automobile-related

         20  businesses and in 1933 the theater closed and the

         21  interior was converted to an automobile showroom.

         22  Despite such changes, the exterior is well-preserved

         23  and remains a symbol of the growing popularity of

         24  the motion picture in the early twentieth century.

         25                 The Commission urges you to affirm
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          2  the designation of the Claremont Theater.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you. I know

          4  Council Member Jackson is strongly in support

          5  because of both its historical and aesthetic value.

          6                 Do any of my colleagues have

          7  questions?

          8                 Council Member Martinez.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Thank you,

         10  Madam Chair. I just have a quick question. So, by

         11  designating a landmark, can you just give me a

         12  description of how this would change from what I see

         13  here?

         14                 MS. JACKIER: It doesn't have to

         15  change. The Commission is an applicant-driven

         16  agency, so if the applicant would like to make any

         17  changes to it, they can submit an application to the

         18  Commission.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: I say change

         20  in terms of when you look at the picture, I'm

         21  familiar with the building, so based on the history

         22  you just described and designating a landmark, will

         23  we see changes in terms of the realty -- I see like

         24  five or six different kind of retail stores there

         25  now.
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          2                 MS. JACKIER: Right. The Commission

          3  doesn't regulate use. So, we have no jurisdiction

          4  over determining what actually would be in the

          5  building. But if there are different uses, we would

          6  regulate those changes like new signage or new

          7  lighting, or whatever effect that new potential

          8  change could have on the building.

          9                 But we are an applicant-driven agency

         10  and that the applicant would contact us and say,

         11  look, we're a new business going into this

         12  storefront, we need to make some changes, can you do

         13  this, this and this, and the Commission would review

         14  it.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: So the owner

         16  didn't express any changes to the current make-up of

         17  the building?

         18                 MS. JACKIER: I know that the owner,

         19  when he testified at the hearing, said that he

         20  wanted to apply in the future for, you know, some

         21  changes to the building, but we don't have any

         22  applications right now for that. So, there's nothing

         23  that I could comment on from that.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Thank you.

         25                 MS. JACKIER: You're welcome.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Sure, Council

          3  Member Comrie.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Have you been

          5  in contact with the owner?

          6                 MS. JACKIER: Absolutely, yes.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Do you have an

          8  owner's updated position?

          9                 MS. JACKIER: The owner testified at

         10  the public hearing in favor of designation.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: In favor.

         12                 So, I think what Council Member

         13  Martinez was saying, like if you look at the

         14  picture, there are a lot of signage.

         15                 MS. JACKIER: Right.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: So, are you

         17  saying that if a new tenant comes in after it's

         18  landmarked, they could not put up this same type of

         19  signage?

         20                 MS. JACKIER: They could change the

         21  signage, absolutely? They would need a permit from

         22  the Commission to change the signage.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: But they could

         24  have the same size and dimensions?

         25                 MS. JACKIER: I don't know what it
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          2  would be. The Commission would determine what would

          3  be appropriate.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Ah-hah. In

          5  other words, she's not saying that the signage could

          6  be the same as is there now.  After it's landmarked,

          7  it may be changed to a landmark-type sign from a

          8  different era, correct?

          9                 MS. JACKIER: No.

         10                 There are a lot of --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Because let me

         12  try and be clear here. I think what Council

         13  Martinez's concern is about the marketability of the

         14  site after it's landmarked.

         15                 MS. JACKIER: Right.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: It's a

         17  traditional site, where they're doing furniture and

         18  other things that kind of requires a large sign to

         19  attract residents and car traffic, or would they be

         20  able to keep that kind of sign there if they changed

         21  to whatever store.

         22                 I'm sure there's not a storage place

         23  up there, but I think he's concerned that the

         24  ability to do commerce there and the ability to

         25  maintain the same type of visual attraction that the
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          2  rest of the stores on the block would still be

          3  there, correct, Council Member? Only you're saying

          4  you can't make that promise.

          5                 MS. JACKIER: I didn't say that. The

          6  Commission routinely approves signage for landmarked

          7  buildings all across New York City to accommodate

          8  owners' needs, and attract businesses, you know,

          9  attract patrons and everything like that.

         10                 So, I can't comment as to any

         11  particular application for this building but the

         12  Commission routinely approves signage.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: But you can't

         14  say that the existing dimensions wouldn't be kept?

         15  You can't even say that?

         16                 MS. JACKIER: No, I can't say that.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Certainly the

         19  existing signage is allowed to remain, yes.

         20                 MS. JACKIER: The existing signage is

         21  grandfathered.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Whatever is there

         23  now is acceptable. And I would assume that because

         24  there is commercial space there now and as signage

         25  evolves, that it will be allowed to remain, although
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          2  it may have to changes slightly in terms of the

          3  aesthetics of the signage, which is not necessarily

          4  a bad thing. But it would still be visible, and the

          5  commercial tenants would still be able to market

          6  themselves to passers-by.

          7                 MS. JACKIER: Absolutely.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Okay.

          9                 Council Member Martinez.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Let me

         11  question on the other side. So, with the historic

         12  perspective that the building has, in terms of, you

         13  know, then you just give as a description, many of

         14  it remains, in terms to the last decade of the use

         15  of the building when the automobile -- because I

         16  know there is a current parking facility right

         17  adjacent to it. I was always trying to understand

         18  how that parking got there but now it makes sense.

         19                 Does the Commission, for example, on

         20  a building of this nature that, you know, was a

         21  theater, then converted to automobile use, and so

         22  forth, now it dramatically changes, all, you know

         23  commercial. And the same is true -- go inside, I'm

         24  sure that many of the features inside has changed.

         25  Does the Landmark Commission just basically consider
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          2  the history of the building and not future use of

          3  the building?

          4                 MS. JACKIER: I'm not sure I

          5  understand your question. The Landmarks Commission

          6  doesn't regulate use, so there is no requirement

          7  that this be a theater or for any automobile use, or

          8  it was also a dance hall for awhile, none of that is

          9  required.

         10                 The Commission would in the future --

         11  the Commission in the future would regulate the

         12  changes proposed by any future uses. So, if this,

         13  let's say they want to make this into residential, I

         14  have no idea --

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Correct.

         16                 MS. JACKIER: The Commission would

         17  then regulate the changes that would be made to this

         18  building as a result of its change to residential

         19  use.

         20                 But it would absolutely be allowed to

         21  be residential use. The Commission does not comment

         22  on that. We comment on the architectural changes to

         23  the building as a result of those changed uses.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: The inside

         25  or the outside?
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          2                 MS. JACKIER: Only the exterior of

          3  this building is designated. The interior --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Okay. Okay,

          5  that's what I missed.

          6                 MS. JACKIER: The interior landmarks

          7  have to be accessible to the public.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Yes.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: The City

         10  Landmarks Preservation Commission does not control

         11  the use of the building. So, changes to the use

         12  would be regulated by City Planning. They're only

         13  here to talk about preserving, in this case, the

         14  exterior of the building, so the interior of the

         15  building could be altered, changed, and the use

         16  could be changed, but not regulated by you.

         17                 MS. JACKIER: That's right.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Council Member

         19  Barron.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: I almost

         21  forgot what the purpose of the Landmarks Commission

         22  was. But that's what I was thinking.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Yes.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Basically

         25  whatever we're landmarking now on exteriors, that's
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          2  it, it stays like that. Any changes, they just

          3  submit an application to you.

          4                 MS. JACKIER: And regulated by the

          5  Commission.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: They're

          7  regulated by the Commission, and they just can't

          8  change things on their own now that it's landmarked.

          9                 MS. JACKIER: Right.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Which is one

         11  of the reasons why folk have problems with getting

         12  things landmarked because they want to change it the

         13  way they want to. And now they just have to go

         14  before the Commission.

         15                 MS. JACKIER: Yes.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: And everything

         17  here now is grandfathered in, right?

         18                 MS. JACKIER: Yes.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Yes, I just

         20  wanted to make sure.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you. And

         22  seeing nobody here to testify on this item, we're

         23  going to close the hearing on this item, and open

         24  the hearing on LU 184, the Estey Piano Company

         25  Factory, which is in Council Member Arroyo's
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          2  district, and the item number is 20065520.

          3                 MS. JACKIER: Good morning, again,

          4  Council members. My name is Diane Jackier. I'm here

          5  to testify in favor of the Commission's designation

          6  on the Estey Piano Factory in the Bronx.

          7                 On April 11th, 2006, the Landmarks

          8  Commission held a public hearing on the proposed

          9  designation. Two people spoke in favor, including a

         10  representative of the Historic Districts Council. No

         11  one spoke in opposition.

         12                 The building had previously been

         13  heard by the Commission, on June 2nd, 1992.

         14                 On May 16th, 2006, the Commission

         15  voted to designate the building a New York City

         16  landmark. Featuring robust brick facades and a

         17  high-corner clock tower, the former Estey Piano

         18  Company Factory is a distinguished monument to an

         19  industry that was once one of the Bronx's most

         20  important.

         21                 Anchoring the northeast corner of

         22  Lincoln Avenue and Southern, now Bruckner Boulevard,

         23  since 1886 the Estey Piano Building is the oldest

         24  known former piano factory standing in the Bronx

         25  today.
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          2                 Designed by the architectural firm

          3  A.B. Ogden & Son, with a later expansion by John

          4  Snook & Sons, the Building's signature clock tower

          5  and expansive facade simply but elegantly detailed

          6  with terra cotta, pattern brick and contrasting

          7  stone are visible from the waterfront and nearby

          8  Harlem River Bridges, making the Estey Piano Factory

          9  a true neighborhood landmark.

         10                 The Estey Piano Company was organized

         11  by Jacob Estey and John B. Simpson in 1885. Two

         12  decades before, Estey had established an organ works

         13  in Brattleboro, Vermont, that had grown into one of

         14  the country's largest producers of reed organs,

         15  thousands of which found their way into American

         16  parlours every year.

         17                 Like other organ manufacturers in the

         18  late nineteenth century, Estey sought to diversify

         19  into the booming piano industry, and his partnership

         20  with Simpson, a pioneering North Side manufacturer,

         21  was a means to that end.

         22                 When Estey Piano opened its factory,

         23  it manufactured upright and Grand Pianos, which

         24  would become recognized for their superior

         25  construction and workmanship. Known today as the
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          2  Clock Tower Building, the Estey Piano Factory

          3  currently houses artists and their studios. With its

          4  historic fabric almost completely intact, the

          5  building remains, in the words of the AIA Guide to

          6  New York City, "the grande dame of the piano trade.

          7  The Commission urges you to affirm the designation.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Council Member

          9  Arroyo, since this is in your district, I would like

         10  you to --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: Thank you,

         12  Madam Chair, and thank you for holding the item for

         13  me.

         14                 We were in the Bronx celebrating the

         15  Bronx Terminal Market ground-breaking ceremony, and

         16  that was a very nice event.

         17                 I had the opportunity to meet with

         18  the owner of the property who is not opposed to the

         19  landmarking, primarily because the Commission has

         20  given them waiver on future construction on the

         21  property that does not involve the facade of the

         22  building, and they have plans to build loft

         23  apartments.

         24                 The existing building is housing

         25  artists and doctors and lawyers and I have one
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          2  question: when you look at this building from the

          3  Second Avenue Bridge, just about every window in the

          4  building is a different window. As it stands now, we

          5  vote on this item today, they can keep those windows

          6  the way they look today? It's an eye-sore, frankly.

          7                 MS. JACKIER: Right, they're

          8  grandfathered as they are now. If the owner wishes

          9  to change them in the future, they would need a

         10  permit from the Commission to do so. But depending

         11  on what they're proposing -- are you saying you want

         12  it to be more uniform? Is that what you're

         13  requesting?

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: There should

         15  be some uniformity, yes. It just doesn't look very

         16  attractive when you look at it. But given that the

         17  owner is not opposed, then it is an institution in

         18  the community. The community board is not opposed to

         19  the landmarking. I support it, and will urge my

         20  colleagues to vote in favor.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you. It

         22  seems to have both historical value, in terms of the

         23  manufacturing use, but also certainly is a visible

         24  landmark from the nearby surrounding areas.

         25                 Seeing nobody here to testify, in
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          2  addition on this item, we'll close the hearing, and

          3  open the hearing on the Loew's Paradise Theater,

          4  which is in Bronx Community Board 5, Council Member

          5  Rivera's district. I think he may share a portion of

          6  this site with Council Member Baez, but regardless

          7  both of them are in support of this items.

          8                 MS. JACKIER: Good morning, again,

          9  Council members. My name is Diane Jackier from the

         10  Landmarks Commission, I'm here to testify in support

         11  of the Commission's designation of the interior of

         12  the Loew's Paradise Theater in the Bronx.

         13                 On April 18th, 2006, the Landmarks

         14  Commission held a public hearing on the proposed

         15  designation. Two people spoke in favor, including

         16  representatives of the Historic District Council,

         17  and the Art Deco Society. No one spoke in

         18  opposition.

         19                 The Commission previously held public

         20  hearings on the Loew's Paradise Interior on July

         21  19th, 1994, and October 19th, 1995. On May 16th,

         22  2006, the Commission voted to designate the interior

         23  of the building, a New York City interior landmark.

         24                 The Loew's Paradise Theater, designed

         25  by John Eberson, is one of the most important
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          2  atmospheric motion picture theaters to survive in

          3  the United States.

          4                 Completed in September 1929, it was

          5  one of five so-called Wonder theaters built by the

          6  New York-based Loew's chain to serve major

          7  population centers outside Midtown Manhattan.

          8                 Located in the Bronx on the West Side

          9  of the Grand Concourse, south of Fordham Road, the

         10  theater incorporates many richly-decorated

         11  interiors, including an auditorium that seats nearly

         12  4,000. Eberson, who invented this type of theater in

         13  the mid-1920s, designed the paradise to evoke the

         14  art and architecture of the late Renaissance or

         15  early Baroque period.

         16                 The studio of Caproni and Brother,

         17  from Boston, Massachusetts, produced most, if not

         18  all of the sculptures in the theater, including

         19  plaster reproductions of works by Michelangelo and

         20  Peter Visher, among others. To enhance the feeling

         21  that patrons were seated outdoors, Eberson

         22  embellished the room with artificial trees, vines

         23  and birds, and installed a machine that produced

         24  simulated clouds. In combination with sound, which

         25  had recently been introduced to the movies, the

                                                            38

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON LANDMARKS

          2  atmospheric theater offered a multi-sensory

          3  experience that has rarely been equaled.

          4                 In subsequent decades, however, the

          5  Paradise was victim to the growing popularity of

          6  television and suburbanization. Though converted to

          7  a multiplex in 1973, ticket sales continued to

          8  decline and the theater closed in 1994. Over the

          9  past decade, however, most alterations have been

         10  reversed and the extravagance of the original

         11  interior has been restored. Considered by many to be

         12  Eberson's masterpiece, the Paradise reopened as an

         13  entertainment venue in October 2005.

         14                 The Commission urges you to affirm

         15  the designation.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you. And I

         17  know, as you mentioned, the exterior of this

         18  building has already been landmarked, and this is

         19  landmarking the interior which is quite exquisite.

         20                 And I think Council Member Barron had

         21  a question.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: I just wanted

         23  to ask a question about uses, which has nothing to

         24  do with you.

         25                 First I want to let my colleagues
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          2  know I got an A in art, so I know what Baroque art

          3  is, and neo-classicism and impressionism and cubism,

          4  so if you want to know anything about art, please

          5  ask me, I'll be able to help you.

          6                 But are they using it for like plays

          7  or shows, like not a movie?

          8                 MS. JACKIER: It's not a movie theater

          9  anymore. I think it's a theater venue right now.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Concerts and

         11  things like that? Performance, okay. Just curious,

         12  it's beautiful.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Council Member

         14  Comrie.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: When were

         16  these pictures taken?

         17                 MS. JACKIER: Recently.

         18                 Is there a date on them? I can check.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: No, there are

         20  no dates on them.

         21                 MS. JACKIER: They were recently taken

         22  upon the completion --

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: What

         24  alterations have been done?

         25                 MS. JACKIER: Well, it was converted
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          2  into a movie theater and it was first a duplex so

          3  they made it into two separate movie theaters, and

          4  then as far as I know it was changed into four

          5  separate movie theaters, so they reversed all of

          6  that.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: They reversed

          8  all that. And how many seats are in it?

          9                 MS. JACKIER: Approximately 4,000.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Four-thousand?

         11  Wow, that's a big place.

         12                 Okay, thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Council Member

         14  Barron.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: The owner is

         16  in opposition to this, right?

         17                 MS. JACKIER: Well, we have met with

         18  the owner many times. As I said, as Council Member

         19  Lappin said, the exterior is designated, so we've

         20  talked to him about exterior changes that he wanted

         21  to make to the building. He never told the Landmarks

         22  Commission that he was opposed to designation of the

         23  interior.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Of the

         25  interior.
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          2                 MS. JACKIER: He never told us that.

          3  But I know he told your staff that, but he had never

          4  told the Landmarks Commission of that.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Did he give

          6  the reasons for our staff, why he opposed it?

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: He indicated that

          8  he just didn't want to deal with the City

          9  bureaucracy. Although he has restored it. I know

         10  Council Member Rivera and I think Baez have spoken

         11  to him and they understand his issues but feel very

         12  strongly about this. And he is not opposed in a

         13  sense that it's more as a philosophical issue.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Okay, there is

         16  nobody else here to testify on this item, so I'm

         17  going to close the hearing on this item and allow

         18  Council Member Martinez to vote on the items we have

         19  already heard, because he has to pick up his

         20  daughter.

         21                 So, Counsel.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: Thank you,

         23  Madam Chair.

         24                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         25  Martinez, how do you vote on Calendar Items,
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          2  Preconsidered 20065552 SCX, Preconsidered 20065560

          3  HKM, LU 184 and LU 186?

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ: I vote aye

          5  on all items and I want to thank the Chair for the

          6  consideration, but I unfortunately have to excuse

          7  myself.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you.

          9                 Okay, now we will move to a hearing

         10  on the Mark Allen House, which is in Staten Island,

         11  in Council Member McMahon's district, and Council

         12  Member McMahon is in favor.

         13                 After we hear from Diane Jackier, we

         14  have the owner I believe, Marie Busiello, who is

         15  here to speak in opposition, and Linda Eskenas who

         16  is here to speak in favor and Simeon Bankoff who is

         17  here to speak in favor.

         18                 MS. JACKIER: Good afternoon, Council

         19  members. Diane Jackier, Director of External Affairs

         20  at the Landmarks Commission. I'm here today to

         21  testify in favor of the Commission's designation of

         22  the Mark W. Allen House in Staten Island.

         23                 On April 18th, 2006, the Landmarks

         24  Commission held a public hearing on the proposed

         25  designation. Six people spoke in favor of
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          2  designation, including Council Member Michael

          3  McMahon, as well as representatives of the Staten

          4  Island Institute for Arts and Sciences, the New York

          5  Preservation Alliance, the West Brighton Restoration

          6  Society and the Historic Districts Council. The

          7  owner of the house spoke in opposition to the

          8  designation.

          9                 On June 13th, 2006, the Commission

         10  voted to designate the building a New York City

         11  landmark. Constructed between 1920 and 1921, the

         12  Mark W. Allen House is one of only a few Craftsman

         13  style homes on Staten Island, and is remarkably

         14  intact, retaining many original details.

         15                 The house was constructed as part of

         16  a residential section of West New Brighton that was

         17  developed in the 1920s by the Competent Home

         18  Building Corporation. The principals of the

         19  development and construction company included August

         20  H. Ludwig and Mark W. Allen, for whom the house was

         21  built.

         22                 Mr. Allen, a Virginia native who

         23  moved to Staten Island in 1898 was a carpenter and

         24  owner of a large building supply company and was

         25  active in real estate. He served in the New York
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          2  State Senate from 1923 to '24, and was instrumental

          3  in the construction of the Goethals Bridge and the

          4  Outerbridge Crossing.

          5                 Mr. Allen ran unsuccessfully for

          6  Staten Island Borough President in 1929, but

          7  remained active in civic organizations. He lived

          8  with his family in this house until he died in 1958.

          9                 Although Craftsman style bungalows

         10  were built throughout the United States in the first

         11  three decades of the 20th century, not many were

         12  constructed on Staten Island, making the Allen House

         13  a rare survivor.

         14                 The roofline, unusually complex for

         15  Craftsman style bungalows, consists of a series of

         16  intersecting gables and dormers. The widely

         17  overhanging eaves suggest the sheltering quality of

         18  the house, while the use of cobblestones on the

         19  front piers and the chimney show the architect's

         20  desire to link the house with the natural

         21  environment and to add to its picturesque qualities.

         22                 The Commission urges you to affirm

         23  the designation.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you. And

         25  it's my understanding that this is a rare and
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          2  excellent example of the Craftsman style on Staten

          3  Island, and it's something that has been on

          4  designation lists from preservation groups for

          5  decades, correct?

          6                 MS. JACKIER: Yes.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Okay.

          8                 Do any of my colleagues have

          9  questions? Okay. That said, I'd like to move to

         10  Marie Busiello. Actually why don't all three of you

         11  come up at the same time, and then we can --

         12                 MS. BUSIELLO: I would prefer to speak

         13  alone.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Okay, if you

         15  would prefer to speak alone. Okay.

         16                 Please state your name for the record

         17  and proceed.

         18                 MS. BUSIELLO: Thank you. Thank you,

         19  City Council members. Thank you, Chairperson Lappin.

         20                 Good morning. Actually now good

         21  afternoon. My name is Marie Busiello, and I'm the

         22  owner of 665 Clove Road in Staten Island, New York.

         23  I'm present today to provide testimony and evidence

         24  as to why I do not want my home made an individual

         25  New York City landmark.
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          2                 On January 13th, 2006, I entered into

          3  contract of sale with the developer. I would like

          4  you to know that I bought the home in 1991, it's a

          5  two-family house. I bought it with my husband and my

          6  parents, we live there as two families, my children.

          7  I raised my children there. I'm a single woman now,

          8  my children have gone and left. It was time to sell

          9  this home.

         10                 The professional pictures that the

         11  Landmarks Commission took make the house look very

         12  together. What they don't show you is cracked

         13  sidewalks, a completely depreciated interior,

         14  asbestos, all kinds of things that make the house

         15  very, very unlivable. And I got to a point where now

         16  I felt that I had to sell the house.

         17                 When I sold the house to the builder

         18  on January 13th, I entered into a contract, and I am

         19  handing out my private contract to you. I entered

         20  into it with a developer named Kenneth Formica, who

         21  planned to use the land the way the Staten Island

         22  zoning laws are. It's built, it's made for three

         23  one-family homes on 40 by 100 lots.

         24                 On January 31st, my buyer, Kenneth

         25  Formica, received a letter that I handed out to you,
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          2  from City Councilman Mike McMahon, stating that he

          3  thought it would be prudent to tell the buyer, he

          4  crosses out his name, he knows him personally, he

          5  crossed out Mr. Formica and wrote Ken, on City

          6  Council letterhead he told him that he wanted him to

          7  know what they were working on, that he considered

          8  it a landmark.

          9                 Mr. Formica, the builder, provided me

         10  with a copy of the letter, when he cancelled our

         11  contract to buy my home.

         12                 I'm submitting this copy for your

         13  perusal. Now, I believe that the only reason Mr.

         14  McMahon had any interest in landmarking my property

         15  is because his Chief of Staff, Kenneth Mitchell,

         16  lives right next door to me in a Craftsman style

         17  cottage, and I brought pictures to show the seven or

         18  eight Craftsman style cottages that are in the

         19  neighborhood, they're labeled on the back, and all

         20  these houses look similar, with the exception that

         21  they don't want to live next door to a site where

         22  there's going to be three one-family homes, which

         23  would only be one more family in the neighborhood.

         24  They're using landmarking to circumvent the zoning

         25  laws, and they're causing me financial ruin in the
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          2  meantime.

          3                 The house, the independent appraisals

          4  that I brought with me for you to look at, the first

          5  one is from 1990, shows the house is about 70 years

          6  old, there's nothing real special about it. It was a

          7  fixer-upper, which unfortunately we weren't really

          8  able to fix too much. But I did, it's undergone many

          9  renovations that did not concern the neighbors or

         10  the neighborhood or Councilman McMahon while I was

         11  ripping off the roof three years ago and putting on

         12  brand new timberline roof and ripping off the

         13  Yankee-style gutters. That didn't concern the

         14  neighbors. It only concerned the neighbors when they

         15  saw the surveyor come to the property and found out

         16  that I was selling to a developer.

         17                 I feel that my constitutional rights

         18  have been violated. I feel I have the right to buy

         19  property and sell property and do with -- just need

         20  to support myself. This is a hardship for me. It's

         21  ironic to me and preposterous that the home of a

         22  one-year State Senator, who was a builder and

         23  developer, is being considered for landmarking.

         24                 I believe that this property should

         25  be developed, if I can find a buyer, according to
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          2  the zoning laws of Staten Island, or if a buyer

          3  wants to buy it as a home, then they can buy it as a

          4  home. But if it's landmarked it severely limits who

          5  I can sell it to.

          6                 Now, the pool of thousands of

          7  applicants, you know, that might want this home has

          8  totally dried up, maybe .025 of the population.

          9                 So, what they're really doing is

         10  stopping me from moving on with my life.

         11                 I'm requesting that when you vote

         12  today, you consider yourself in these circumstances

         13  or your sister or your mother in these

         14  circumstances, that this house is not really worthy

         15  of being an individual landmark of the City of New

         16  York. Craftsman style homes, as the Snug Harbor

         17  Committee testified at the Landmarks Commission, are

         18  built all over the United States.

         19                 From the pictures you can see,

         20  they're built in just a one-block radius all over

         21  Staten Island.  I just didn't happen to put vinyl

         22  siding on mine.

         23                 I also feel that if the City of New

         24  York wishes to landmark a private individual's home,

         25  then the City should buy it for fair market value.
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          2  I'm sorry. The Land Use on my Block 314 Lot 1 is

          3  only for three one-family homes on 40 by 100 lots.

          4  That's what's legal, and I would like to reiterate,

          5  that only adds one more family to the block.

          6                 I have a list of the additions that I

          7  made. It was the tear-down of the roof, the rip off

          8  of the Yankee style gutters, the garage has been

          9  enlarged from two and a half to three car garage,

         10  windows have been replaced, a deck was added on, a

         11  fence surrounds the entire yard, motion detector

         12  lights were installed, the trim was painted

         13  different colors. None of that got the community's

         14  interest in this house, until they found out it was

         15  sold.

         16                 And I would just like to leave you

         17  with one more thing written by someone that I don't

         18  know in the Staten Island Advance.  The title of it

         19  is "Landmarking Neighbor's House Was A Spiteful

         20  Thing To Do." This man, who I don't know, wrote:

         21  "Let me get this straight. Some nosey neighbor, Ken

         22  Mitchell, who just happens to be the Chief of Staff

         23  to Councilman Michael McMahon, manages to get his

         24  next door neighbor's home landmarked so that she

         25  cannot sell it to a developer, and now the City
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          2  Council gets to vote on it and decide her fate." He

          3  writes, "Who the hell is this guy? He should be my

          4  next door neighbor." And then he goes on, you know,

          5  he says some spiteful things, which I don't agree

          6  with. But what he does say is, "I realize the cry

          7  across Staten Island is about overdevelopment, but

          8  take into account that people have to live

          9  somewhere, and being spiteful only serves the agenda

         10  of the person doing it, not the community as a

         11  whole."

         12                 I just implore you, the community as

         13  a whole, I'm not in the historic district, it's not

         14  going to be made a historic district. I live five

         15  houses down from the Staten Island Zoo, on a crowded

         16  block with traffic lights. It's not that bucolic,

         17  it's pretty noisy. I need to find a buyer. I cannot

         18  keep up with this house.

         19                 So, I thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: I have a number

         21  of questions for you.

         22                 One, I want to start, and Council

         23  Member McMahon was very sorry that he couldn't be

         24  here by disputing on his behalf your assertion that

         25  he's only interested in this because it relates to
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          2  his Chief of Staff.

          3                 MS. BUSIELLO: That's right.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: This has been on,

          5  as I mentioned earlier, on preservation lists for

          6  over 20 years. Long before Council Member McMahon

          7  took office, and he has been interested in this

          8  property as a result of that.

          9                 I wish that he were here, because I'm

         10  sure, as he mentioned to me, you two have discussed

         11  this at length at the LPC hearing --

         12                 MS. BUSIELLO: I have never spoken to

         13  him.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Okay. But he

         15  wanted the record to reflect that that has

         16  absolutely no bearing on his position, that this is

         17  something he has taken on because he believes that

         18  on the merits of the historical significance of the

         19  home, that it's worthy of designation, not having to

         20  do with the history of the gentleman who ran for

         21  Borough President, but in terms of it being a rare

         22  example of a Craftsman style bungalow on Staten

         23  Island.

         24                 The other question I had for you was,

         25  you had mentioned that you're afraid that you
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          2  wouldn't be able to sell the property and that the

          3  pool of applicants had dried up. Have you ever

          4  marketed this as the home that it is, or only as

          5  land available for development?

          6                 MS. BUSIELLO: I marketed it through a

          7  Coldwell Banker as land.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Okay. So, you

          9  haven't actually marketed this individual home for

         10  sale as a home?

         11                 MS. BUSIELLO: When I bought it, it

         12  was on the market with Weichert Realty for over four

         13  years. It's a very difficult home to market. And

         14  particularly now if the exterior is landmarked,

         15  because all the value is in the land, and the last

         16  appraisal that I handed out is from Independent

         17  Savings Bank on Staten Island, when I applied for a

         18  home equity loan, because I thought I was moving,

         19  and the landmarking status alone made the home worth

         20  $200,000 less. People on Staten Island aren't very

         21  interested as a whole in landmarked homes. They want

         22  to get the maintenance free, they want to bring them

         23  up to code, they want to put in central air. I have

         24  windows that are inoperable. Seventy-five windows in

         25  this house, most of which have the cut. There's all

                                                            54

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON LANDMARKS

          2  kinds of -- there's an underground oil tank for the

          3  heating, it's going to be, like I said, extremely

          4  difficult to market, and the independent appraisers

          5  also point out that the home is probably only going

          6  to be intact for about 30 to 40 years. They have a

          7  paragraph about the depreciation and the best use of

          8  this is as land.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Well, I think the

         10  concern is not one of zoning. I think the concern is

         11  that this is an important historical home, and

         12  having it be completely raised --

         13                 MS. BUSIELLO: I'm sorry, Councilman

         14  Lappin, important to whom? Because when I bought the

         15  house, my husband and I, through due diligence, we

         16  questioned the owner, we contacted appropriate

         17  authorities, this house was not landmarked. I did

         18  not buy a landmarked home, and I don't wish to sell

         19  a landmarked home. I just wish to sell it and leave.

         20  I can't take care of it.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: You wish to sell

         22  the land, not the home.

         23                 MS. BUSIELLO: I wish to sell the

         24  whole -- when you sell the land, you sell the home,

         25  because it's parked right in the middle of the
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          2  property. And the garage, it concerns me, why would

          3  anybody landmark the garage? It's a garage?

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Council Member

          5  Barron.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: How much of it

          7  was changed so that the value of historic

          8  preservation would you say no longer exists, or

          9  minimally exists? Has it been changed that much over

         10  the years?

         11                 MS. BUSIELLO: Well, if you look at

         12  the front picture of the house, the roof is in

         13  effect the whole second floor and it's about 4,800

         14  square feet, that entire roof is ripped off and

         15  replaced with all brand new products, Timberline

         16  products, the Yankee gutters. The rip-down retained

         17  the shape of the roof, but it's brand new 2003

         18  materials and supplies.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: So, you're

         20  saying that really depreciated the historic value of

         21  the house?

         22                 MS. BUSIELLO: I can't say that's what

         23  did it. I'm not quite clear on what depreciates it.

         24  It's that people, what depreciates the house,

         25  according to the appraisals, is that no one can use
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          2  the land or build on the land or do anything with

          3  the land or make additions to the land, the

          4  Landmarks Commission has to approve every single

          5  solitary thing you do, and what they do, because

          6  I've gone through many meetings there, is they make

          7  you hire architects and they make you hire

          8  specialists, they make you hire artists, and you

          9  spend all this time and energy and money and time

         10  that you can't take off from work to prove that you

         11  need to change something.

         12                 I sat there and watched them. They

         13  had piece after piece after piece of people showing

         14  you couldn't paint the ceiling in your home if it

         15  showed outside, so people sit there and control your

         16  life.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: I don't think

         18  the Landmarks Commission can make you hire

         19  architects and things like that.

         20                 MS. BUSIELLO: Right, but --

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: So, you feel

         22  that any new owner, any changes they may want to

         23  make, you know --

         24                 MS. BUSIELLO: They'll have a very

         25  difficult time.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: But within the

          3  Landmarks Commission there is a process for changes

          4  to be made.

          5                 MS. BUSIELLO: There is a process. A

          6  lengthy, tedious, paper-filling, bureaucratic

          7  process.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Okay, thank

          9  you very much.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Madam Chair,

         11  I'm looking at the documentation for Clove Road, and

         12  it's the same pictures as the documentation for 134

         13  Main Street. The pictures that were given to us in

         14  the back are the pictures for the Elizabeth De Hart

         15  House, not the pictures for Clove Road. Look on the

         16  pictures on the back. For whatever reason, I have

         17  the pictures on my back, I can show you, 134. When

         18  they were duplicating all the copies they probably

         19  --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Did you have a

         21  question, Council Member Comrie?

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Well, yes and

         23  no. I mean, I kind of understand the pain that Ms.

         24  -- What's your name?

         25                 MS. BUSIELLO: Busiello.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Busiello is

          3  going through, and to ask a single woman that is

          4  taking care of a senior citizen to try to maintain a

          5  property that she says is in a total state of

          6  disrepair is creating a severe hardship. And if you

          7  look at the appraisals that she's had done recently,

          8  neither of which are giving her anywhere near the

          9  value that she could get if she could sell the

         10  property. I think this is something that the

         11  Committee needs to consider and maybe hold off on a

         12  vote on this item for today.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: And while I

         14  appreciate the sentiment, I think we need to just

         15  time-wise move forward today.

         16                 But I did want to bring up -- if

         17  there are no other questions, then I'd like to bring

         18  up the other two witnesses.

         19                 Linda Eskenas and Simeon Bankoff.

         20                 Please introduce yourself in person.

         21                 MS. ESKENAS: Sure. Thank you. Linda

         22  Eskenas, Preservation League of Staten Island and

         23  West Brighton Restoration Society.

         24                 First of all, this extraordinary

         25  house is in great shape, it's absolutely beautiful,
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          2  and has been and people drive by from all over the

          3  island to look at it. It's absolutely beautiful, and

          4  it's been kept in great shape. Unfortunately, the

          5  owner, you know, feels that she's trapped or

          6  something. For me, of course, beyond this, it's an

          7  honor to save a piece of my country. That's how I

          8  feel about landmarking.

          9                 I own two landmark houses, one for

         10  about 30 years, and the other one I fought to get it

         11  landmarked and succeeded, because it's an honor. And

         12  also it has been proved that historic districts and

         13  individual landmarks, the value goes up and not

         14  down. We have horrible builders, not only here but

         15  all over the country. People are screaming about our

         16  houses being torn down, our neighborhoods were

         17  devastated and gouged out. As a matter of fact, and

         18  people prey on that, they prey on the owners who

         19  really don't understand what's happening. The

         20  market, well, it might be going down a little bit.

         21  This house is extremely marketable, and you do have

         22  to market it intelligently, not the land. You put it

         23  in the New York Times, I mean it's a corner

         24  property, it's huge. It's a two-family house, it's

         25  absolutely beautiful, and if it were landmarked with
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          2  the garage in a wonderful neighborhood, it's right

          3  next to the Gardens and the zoo, Staten Island Zoo.

          4  It's fantastic. It's the cornerstone of this

          5  neighborhood. We're losing our neighborhoods. Our

          6  neighborhoods are being gouged out by greedy

          7  developers, and by the way, Formica, Kenneth

          8  Formica, interestingly enough, I'm fighting for this

          9  house, but we are losing a house that was built in

         10  1846 by an Irish immigrant who achieved the American

         11  dream before the Civil War. That is on Taylor

         12  Street. Directly across the street on Taylor Street.

         13  Ken Formica managed to break this block and gouge

         14  out this one house where there are now 17, there

         15  were 35 hideous houses. We have the worst on Staten

         16  Island of these boxes that are badly built and

         17  awful. And it's not only our American Heritage taken

         18  away, it's our neighborhood. And people hang into

         19  these neighborhoods on Taylor Street,

         20  year-after-year of constant assault. They hang on

         21  and they hope for something better. God knows I have

         22  worked for something better, and in taking out these

         23  houses, it's not just taking out a house, it's

         24  taking out another American neighborhood, another

         25  Staten Island neighborhood. It's not okay, it will
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          2  never be okay.

          3                 As far as how much it could be sold

          4  for, it's a fantastic house, it could be sold for as

          5  much as Mr. Formica would be -- you may have been

          6  familiar with Mr. Formica, because remember the

          7  workman that was beheaded, that was Mr. Formica. He

          8  was in the backhoe, and that was his worker. The

          9  worker died because they were in such a hurry, they

         10  could not support the hole in the ground the worker

         11  was in. It was raining and raining before this and

         12  the hole collapsed.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Ms. Eskenas, I

         14  need to ask you to wrap up, please.

         15                 MS. ESKENAS: Okay, I'm sorry.

         16                 This is an extraordinary -- when you

         17  just look up at this building, you're amazed at its

         18  grace and all the different angles of in the roof

         19  and even the garage, and even the cellar door has a

         20  special curve to it. And also, every one of these

         21  houses tells a story of our country, and this was

         22  built -- well, in California 1900s, this is when the

         23  Craftsman cottage began, and it came to our East

         24  Coast in the twenties.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you, Ms.

                                                            62

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON LANDMARKS

          2  Eskenas. I appreciate your testimony.

          3                 MS. ESKENAS: Sure. Just after World

          4  War 1 it was a different American dream, it was

          5  serenity and peace and, you know, your home is your

          6  castle. These were wonderful houses. I mean, it

          7  wasn't a great castle, but to an American, it was

          8  his castle.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you very

         10  much.

         11                 Mr. Bankoff.

         12                 MR. BANKOFF: Good afternoon, Council

         13  Members. Simeon Bankoff, Executive Director of the

         14  Historic Districts Council.

         15                 Let me just say before I address this

         16  particular item, that HDC did support all of the

         17  other items in front of the Landmarks Commission. I

         18  felt it was unnecessary to repeat our words from

         19  before, but I'm very pleased to see the Landmarks

         20  Commission and this Administration following up on

         21  their pledge to look at buildings outside of

         22  Manhattan and in the areas that have been

         23  underrepresented. We have got stuff in the Bronx,

         24  things above 96th Street, in Staten Island here, so

         25  I'm very pleased to see that now, and I would like
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          2  to go on the record of supporting those particular

          3  items.

          4                 The Mark Allen House, as Linda has

          5  stated, and as Diane before her, was really a stand

          6  out in a neighborhood that probably will never be a

          7  historic district.

          8                 One of the elements that you deal

          9  with when you're doing historic preservation in the

         10  City is that while you have wonderful neighborhoods

         11  that do have historic character, all too often they

         12  can't all become historic districts. It's just

         13  impossible and bureaucratic weight load of the

         14  agency. So, instead what the agency has done in the

         15  past is find the special standouts, the anchor

         16  points to these neighborhoods, to these blocks, that

         17  by preserving them, you help preserve the essence of

         18  the neighborhood, preserve the essence of the

         19  street, and this is one of those houses.

         20                 There are Craftsman houses on Staten

         21  Island and there are Craftsman houses in throughout

         22  the five boroughs; however, this is a remarkably,

         23  remarkably well preserved one. When you're dealing

         24  with a wood frame structure, it is so very easy to

         25  lose integrity, and I'd actually like to compliment

                                                            64

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON LANDMARKS

          2  the owner on when she redid the roof, redoing the

          3  roof in a very sensible and sympathetic fashion.

          4                 You know, in Japan the way they do

          5  preservation is they often replace pieces of

          6  buildings. Temples that are 500, 600 years old, the

          7  oldest part of that temple is really like 50 or 60

          8  years old, but they keep replacing it in-kind and

          9  they keep the look and the feel of the old building

         10  so it retains its historic character. That's what's

         11  happened here.

         12                 So, I think this is an important

         13  house. I think it's a very interesting house, not

         14  only from an architectural point of view, but from

         15  the point of view that this man was the developer of

         16  the neighborhood, so you actually have the

         17  developer's house and he was so important. And Linda

         18  is laughing because I'm saying nice things about

         19  developers, but in fact, this was sort of his home

         20  within the community he was building.

         21                 We have a similar situation like that

         22  with the Landmarks Commission designated in Flatbush

         23  when they designated the Avenue H Subway stop, that

         24  was the selling house of the Neighborhood Park

         25  Terrace Historic District, soon to be hopefully
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          2  proposed historic district, and that was, it's

          3  important for the development of the area that you

          4  see that this is the place where the person who

          5  developed the area lived and put enough pride into

          6  it to make into a standout house.

          7                 So, for all these reasons I'd like to

          8  give my support. I'd also just like to say that one

          9  person's appraisal is another person's -- well,

         10  interesting idea of a thing, I used to, when I

         11  worked for the City in the Parks Department, one of

         12  the things that I used to do was get appraisals for

         13  historic properties, and it really depends on who

         14  the appraiser is and whether or not you're

         15  appraising it as a land value or as a home, and you

         16  get completely different kind of appraisals.

         17                 And finally, let me say that there

         18  does exist within the law a hardship provision that

         19  if it does come to this, there can be a hardship

         20  provision within the landmarks law, which the

         21  Council had authorized when the Council adopted the

         22  law 40 years ago, that there's a process that can be

         23  gone through if that is what needs to happen.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you for

         25  pointing that out.
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          2                 Thank you both for testifying.

          3                 I'd like Diane Jackier to come back

          4  because Council Member Palma and Council Member

          5  Barron both have questions.

          6                 Thank you.

          7                 Council Member Palma.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: Thank you,

          9  Madam Chair.

         10                 Diane, is the whole neighborhood

         11  going to be landmarked a historic district, or just

         12  this one?

         13                 MS. JACKIER: No, the Commission is

         14  only interested in this one house, only designated

         15  this one house.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: Then her

         17  neighbor could end up selling his house for land to

         18  the developer?

         19                 MS. JACKIER: Yes.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: Why?

         21                 MS. JACKIER: The Commission had

         22  looked at the area as a potential historic district

         23  but felt the other Craftsman style houses that are

         24  around it have been altered in such a way they have

         25  enclosed porches or vinyl siding put on. This is the
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          2  best representative of the house, the houses in the

          3  neighborhood.

          4                 The Commission did not feel, when we

          5  look at a historic district, we look for what is

          6  called "a distinct sense of place" and because of

          7  the alterations to the other buildings, the

          8  Commission did not decide to move forward with the

          9  rest of the neighborhood as a historic district. It

         10  was just this house.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: I have no

         12  further questions.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Council Member

         14  Barron.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: The roof

         16  wasn't changed enough to take away from the historic

         17  value?

         18                 MS. JACKIER: No, the house, the

         19  Commission really looked at this building and felt

         20  that it was an excellent example of the Craftsman

         21  style. It has exquisite detail.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Was the roof

         23  altered?

         24                 MS. JACKIER: The roof was changed,

         25  yes.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Did it take

          3  away --

          4                 MS. JACKIER: No, because the house

          5  has its original siding, its original detail, it has

          6  the original chimney.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: I mean, just

          8  the roof alone --

          9                 MS. JACKIER: No, that was not enough

         10  to --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Or was the

         12  roof altered in a way that it is now very different

         13  from --

         14                 MS. JACKIER: I don't have pictures of

         15  what it looked like before, so I can't say how much

         16  it would change.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Well, the roof

         18  that you did do, would you consider that a historic

         19  --

         20                 MS. JACKIER: The Commission felt that

         21  the house as a whole --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: No, not the

         23  house as a whole. I mean just the roof --

         24                 MS. JACKIER: That's what the

         25  Commission looked at.

                                                            69

          1  SUBCOMMITTEE ON LANDMARKS

          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: I understand.

          3  But what did they say about the roof. Let's say they

          4  said, well, the roof no longer has historic value,

          5  but the sides and everything else does --

          6                 MS. JACKIER: Right, the Commission --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Is that what

          8  they're saying? Or they altered it so accurately to

          9  almost have it as similar. Which you should have

         10  altered the whole thing, so you wouldn't have been

         11  in trouble now. But anyway --

         12                 MS. JACKIER: The Commission looked at

         13  the house as a whole and felt that it was an

         14  excellent intact example --

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: But I just

         16  want to know about the roof itself, that part of it.

         17  Is that still of historic value?

         18                 MS. JACKIER: It's a new roof. It's a

         19  roof from 2003.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: So you're

         21  saying no, it isn't.

         22                 MS. JACKIER: I'm saying that's a roof

         23  from 2003, but that doesn't mean the house in its

         24  whole --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: No, not the
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          2  house. I'm just talking about the roof alone.

          3                 MS. JACKIER: The roof is from 2003.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: So that has no

          5  historic value?

          6                 MS. JACKIER: The owner could change

          7  it, if they wanted to. And it's something that's

          8  grandfathered as it is, the condition --

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: I'm saying,

         10  the roof has no real historic value?

         11                 MS. JACKIER: The house has a whole --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: I got the

         13  house. I got the house.

         14                 MS. JACKIER: I totally know what

         15  you're asking. What I'm --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: I'm just

         17  trying to piecemeal it here. I got the house is.

         18                 MS. JACKIER: The Commission looks at

         19  the house as a whole.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: I got that.

         21  I'm just asking does the roofing have historic

         22  value?

         23                 MS. JACKIER: The roof is from 2003.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: I guess the

         25  answer is no because it's from 2003.
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          2                 MS. JACKIER: And what the Commission

          3  looks at is the house as a whole.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: I got that.

          5  You could say it ten more times, I got it.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: But you don't

          7  know what the design of the previous roof or the

          8  current roof. It could be that the new roof is in

          9  accordance with the original.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: That's what

         11  I'm trying to find out, if the owner replicated the

         12  older design and it still has historic value, or is

         13  the only thing you're talking about when you say

         14  "the house," I mean, a house without a roof, that's

         15  a big piece of house to take out.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: The Commission

         17  will designate properties where there have been

         18  alterations or additions made that were modern but

         19  in keeping with. So, I think what Diane was saying

         20  is that she doesn't have any specific information,

         21  other than the Commission looked at the property,

         22  with the understanding that it was a new modern roof

         23  and still felt it was --

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: I got that,

         25  but I think the roof is such a huge part of the
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          2  house that a Commission should at least say, you

          3  know, we believe that the roof no longer has

          4  historic value but the sides do, the porch does or

          5  whatever else.

          6                 I just think on this one, Madam

          7  Chair, that I would not vote for this to be

          8  landmarked, and I am a preservationist. I believe in

          9  preservation. I believe in historic value, but when

         10  you have a whole community that have Craft houses

         11  and they've altered theirs and it's not a landmark

         12  district at all, and the roof was changed, and it's

         13  just some parts of the house, I think that's a bit

         14  much.

         15                 So, I would not support the

         16  designation of this item.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you.

         18                 The hearing on this item is closed.

         19  And we may consider holding this item over for a

         20  vote until tomorrow morning.

         21                 I'd like to open the hearing on the

         22  last item on the agenda, which is the DeHart House,

         23  which is 134 Main Street. It's in Staten Island, in

         24  Council Member Lanza's district. He is in support of

         25  the designation, Item No. 20065521.
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          2                 MS. JACKIER: Good afternoon, Council

          3  members. My name is Diane Jackier, Director of

          4  External Affairs for the Landmarks Commission.

          5                 I'm here today to testify in favor of

          6  the Commission's designation of the DeHart in Staten

          7  Island.

          8                 On July 26th, 2005, the Landmarks

          9  Commission held a public hearing on a proposed

         10  designation. Seven people spoke in favor, including

         11  representatives of the Metropolitan Chapter of the

         12  Victorian Society of America, the Historic Districts

         13  Council, Tottenville Historical Society, West

         14  Brighton Restoration Society and the Preservation

         15  League of Staten Island.

         16                 No one spoke in opposition. The

         17  Commission also received letters in support from

         18  Council Member Andrew J. Lanza, and the Municipal

         19  Arts Society.

         20                 On May 16th, 2006, the Commission

         21  voted to designate the building a New York City

         22  landmark.

         23                 The Theodore and Elizabeth DeHart

         24  House, built Circa 1850 is a rare survivor of early

         25  Tottenville, an important 19th century town on
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          2  Staten Island's South Shore.

          3                 This vernacular clapboard cottage

          4  merges older local building traditions with newer

          5  Greek and Gothic Revival modes. The richly

          6  ornamented 1870s front porch features articulated

          7  carved posts, cutwork spandrels and an exuberant

          8  railing. The entire house is substantially intact.

          9  Sharing architectural forms with other Tottenville

         10  houses, this is one of the best-preserved houses

         11  representing South Shore Staten Island's early

         12  building tradition.

         13                 Through its succession of owners, the

         14  house has close ties to the oyster business which

         15  created the town of Tottenville. It was built as an

         16  investment on the newly laid-out Totten Street,

         17  later called Main Street, by Henry Butler, of a

         18  Tottenville family whose ferrymen and millers went

         19  back several generations.

         20                 Three years later it was owned by

         21  William H.B. Totten, a grocer, and four years after

         22  that by Joseph W. Totten, a partner in an

         23  oyster-opening firm. Theodore DeHart, an oyster

         24  planter, was the owner of longest duration, from

         25  1874 to 1913. 134 Main Street is one of the two
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          2  oldest houses on this important Tottenville street.

          3  The Commission urges you to affirm the designation.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you. And I

          5  know that the owners want to speak in opposition,

          6  but I wanted to state for the record, it's my

          7  understanding that this item was calendared by the

          8  Commission in 1991.

          9                 MS. JACKIER: Correct.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: So, just for my

         11  colleagues to understand, this item has been on the

         12  agenda for the Landmarks Preservation Commission for

         13  15 years, correct?

         14                 MS. JACKIER: Correct.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Okay. So, this is

         16  something that has been sort of a long time coming,

         17  and I think that's why Council Member Lanza and

         18  Municipal Arts Society and some other organizations

         19  are so strongly in support, because it's something

         20  they have been working toward in trying to convince

         21  the Commission to actually designate for 15 years.

         22                 MS. JACKIER: The Commission was also

         23  in support of this for the past 15 years.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: It just took a

         25  long time.
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          2                 MS. JACKIER: Yes, sometimes it does.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Okay. Do any of

          4  my colleagues have questions?

          5                 Okay, thank you. And with that, I'd

          6  like to ask the owner, Carmen Garner and Marie

          7  Bedell to come and speak.

          8                 MS. GARNER: Good afternoon. My name

          9  is Carmen Garner. I am a realtor. I am here to

         10  oppose a statement that was made a few minutes ago,

         11  where it was stated that landmarks -- again, the

         12  dwellings that have been landmarked are worth so

         13  much and they're easy to sell. Well, that is not so,

         14  and I beg to disagree.

         15                 If you buy a building in Manhattan

         16  and you redo the inside and you make all kinds of

         17  profitable, you know, condos, and you make

         18  profitable offices, then it's a very lucrative

         19  transaction. But I listed Ms. Bedell's house exactly

         20  a year and five months ago. Mrs. Bedell did not even

         21  know that this was landmarked due to the fact she's

         22  an elder person, takes mail, puts it aside and it is

         23  to her understanding that she never received

         24  anything from the Landmarks Commission.

         25                 Whether she did or she didn't, I
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          2  couldn't say. She said that she didn't.

          3                 I listed this house in March, I

          4  believe it was March 15th, and in two days, March

          5  17th, I sold this house cash to a builder, and I'm

          6  in agreement with the Landmark Commission, they

          7  should preserve all these wonderful places. Yes, I

          8  do agree with that. But by the same token, I sold

          9  this house cash, the man came to my office, said

         10  nothing -- he was a builder, of course. As soon as

         11  we went into contract, the Landmark Commission came

         12  in and sent a letter to Mrs. Bedell, which she in

         13  turn showed me. I said, oh my God. And they claim

         14  that your house was landmarked or was in the process

         15  of being landmarked, I think they said for ten

         16  years. Well, she didn't know that, okay? This

         17  builder, of course, didn't buy the house because he

         18  was more interested in the land, okay?

         19                 A couple of days after that, I had

         20  someone from the Greek Orthodox Church wanting to

         21  buy this property. They wanted to keep the building

         22  as a landmarked building. They wanted to keep it as

         23  it is. They wanted to use it as a Sunday school and

         24  use the land for parking, so they were planning to

         25  put concrete and make a driveway, which Mrs.
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          2  Bedell's property is all grass, you know, it's not

          3  paved. They wanted to pave it, park cars out there

          4  and have a Sunday school. Another cash transaction

          5  for $750,000, I have the documents here to prove it.

          6  They went to a lawyer in Staten Island who had

          7  braced them, and told them they could not build this

          8  parking lot.

          9                 It seems that originally when Mrs.

         10  Bedell bought this house, this was residential and

         11  it had a commercial overlay. In October of 2005, the

         12  City came in and took away -- they rezoned the area,

         13  it is no longer, it no longer has commercial

         14  overlay. If anyone wants to see here, I was trying

         15  to sell the house and we listed the house and

         16  advertised it as a beautiful restaurant, a beautiful

         17  antique shop, a beautiful health spot, day spot,

         18  which I felt these were good advertisements. I had

         19  someone from a restaurant wanting to buy it, he

         20  can't do what he really wants because he can't pave

         21  that road and so on. He renegged on this.

         22                 There's something else I'd like to

         23  mention again. Mrs. Bedell is 88 years old. She had

         24  problems -- they told us to go to City Hall. She had

         25  to walk here. She was very tired. She could hardly
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          2  walk, okay? It was very hard for her to attend this

          3  meeting.

          4                 Now, Mrs. Bedell, her only relative

          5  is one son who has a wife and two children. She has

          6  as family, a son, a daughter-in-law and two

          7  children. They don't live here. They live out of

          8  state, okay? Most of the Bedell's, they're all dead.

          9  There aren't any left. Well, I'm sorry to say that.

         10  What I'm trying to say here is, if anyone has been

         11  in Mrs. Bedell's house, I think it's nice, the

         12  planks on the floor are beautiful, she's done very

         13  little to it. She has a hard time cleaning, cooking

         14  for herself, looking after herself. I think it is

         15  unfair what's being done to Mrs. Bedell. She really

         16  needs to go and live with her children. God forbid

         17  anything happened to her in this house, they live

         18  out of town. This is a very serious -- it's a

         19  hardship.

         20                 I understood, I was talking to

         21  Councilman Lanza's office up til Thursday, they had

         22  said that they put in a proposal for this to be

         23  bought. I don't have anything in writing here. But

         24  it was my understanding that they had done this, and

         25  I think this is what we're asking should be done
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          2  here.

          3                 She'll tell you, she wants to go on

          4  with her life. Her son cannot come here. And in all

          5  due respect to the Landmark Commission, I'm for you

          6  people landmarking all these beautiful dwellings,

          7  but this is a very, very extenuating circumstance.

          8  Mrs. Bedell is 88, needs to go and live with her

          9  son.

         10                 Now, the Landmarks Commission says,

         11  oh, it's so easy to sell these. It is not. I'm here

         12  to tell you, it is very difficult because the minute

         13  they see landmark, people don't want it. And now

         14  that we cannot even sell it where people could have

         15  it as a Sunday school or a restaurant or whatever,

         16  it's going to be extremely difficult for this lady

         17  to get her money and move on with her life and go

         18  live with her family.

         19                 So, what I'm here to request, I don't

         20  know, Councilman Lanza's office, they told me

         21  specifically on Thursday that they had done

         22  something about this hardship, I don't know, I shall

         23  go to them and see what's going on. But I'm here for

         24  you people to vote that it is a hardship, and Mrs.

         25  Bedell should go with her children and it should be
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          2  bought by the City, I guess. Why should she be

          3  deprived of this?

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Let me ask a

          5  question.

          6                 MS. GARNER: Sure.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Would you like to

          8  speak as well?

          9                 MS. GARNER: Would you like to say

         10  something?

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Would you like to

         12  say something?

         13                 MS. BEDELL: No, not really. She seems

         14  to do very well.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: I have a couple

         16  of questions. One, I want to make sure you

         17  understand, this has been calendared since 1991. So,

         18  this item has been on the Landmarks Preservation

         19  Commission's agenda for a long time.

         20                 MS. GARNER: I am aware of that. You

         21  may understand, this lady didn't know that. And she

         22  claims she didn't receive any mail. She claims she

         23  didn't. And even when she got the Landmark

         24  Commission, she knew very little about this, and she

         25  called me. The first letter where you people came
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          2  forward when there was a contract for this house and

          3  property, the Landmark Commission came in and sent

          4  her a letter, which she in turn showed me, and then

          5  I explained to her, this is what's going on, you

          6  know?

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: I mean, I'm not

          8  sure why a lawyer advised you that if this property

          9  is designated, it could not be turned into, for

         10  example, a Sunday school. That's something that the

         11  Commission would hear and examine, and that is a

         12  distinct possibility.

         13                 There could be a change in use for

         14  this property.

         15                 MS. GARNER: First off, the church

         16  people that were going to buy this, they were from

         17  the Greek Orthodox Church. They already bought

         18  something else, due to the fact -- this was a cash

         19  sale also, due to the fact when they heard about the

         20  Landmark Commission, they went to their attorney,

         21  and their attorney advised them not to buy this

         22  property.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: I just want to

         24  make sure you understand, and I want to make sure

         25  Ms. Bedell understands that if the Council upholds
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          2  the designation, that doesn't preclude a sale that

          3  would turn this into another use. And the Landmarks

          4  Commission would review that and that is a distinct

          5  possibility. I just want to make sure you understand

          6  that.

          7                 MS. GARNER: I have a question for

          8  you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Well, this isn't

         10  actually an exchange or a debate. We ask the

         11  questions.

         12                 MS. GARNER: Okay, I'll make a

         13  statement then.

         14                 My statement is: I sold this house

         15  the first week I listed it. It's been on the market

         16  since then and no buyers have come forward. All the

         17  agents and realtors in Staten Island are fully aware

         18  that this is being landmarked, or it was landmarked,

         19  they don't want it. Nobody wants it.

         20                 And I think the Landmark is basing

         21  their statements and their information on a lot of

         22  landmarks. Okay, brownstone, you know, people that

         23  can afford a brownstone, yes, that's quite an honor

         24  to buy a brownstone, and they know that if they want

         25  to resell that, some other person would buy that
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          2  brownstone. Or a building perhaps in Manhattan that

          3  you can turn into offices inside, because I know

          4  you're allowed to do whatever you want inside.

          5                 But this is a very different

          6  situation. She's 88. She's not 18 or 48. She's 88.

          7  Her son is all angry because he wants his mother to

          8  go and live with him in Colorado and she can't. I

          9  don't think that the Landmark Commission, no one

         10  should be allowed to do this to an 88-year-old

         11  person. If she was 40 years old or 45 --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Do you have any

         13  questions? Any of my colleagues? Okay.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: Not so much a

         15  question as a comment. I think, you know, these

         16  stories are very compelling to me personally, as

         17  someone who lives in a community that is under siege

         18  by developers and there is a historic district in my

         19  neighbor's, Council Member Viverito's district, all

         20  brownstones and at the end there is this horrible

         21  looking house. I got it that we don't want that to

         22  happen, and I'm not sure that landmarking properties

         23  is a way for us to go about preventing that from

         24  happening, but I'm very hard pressed to vote in

         25  favor of these two items.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you.

          3                 We're going to close the hearing on

          4  this.

          5                 Okay, Linda, if you can keep your

          6  comments to two minutes, because we need to wrap up.

          7                 Okay, thank you very much for coming

          8  down. We appreciate you taking the time to come

          9  down. I know it's difficult.

         10                 We're going to hold over the vote on

         11  this item until tomorrow morning, but there is one

         12  more person, two more people who are here to

         13  testify.

         14                 Thank you.

         15                 MS. GARNER: Do you want to talk to

         16  them?

         17                 MS. BEDELL: I want to leave. It's

         18  time. It's time. I'm older than everybody over here,

         19  I'm 88 now. It's time for me to go. I don't know why

         20  you have to make it so hard for me to go. I don't

         21  care if you bring the builder and let him knock it

         22  down. I don't care. I don't.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Okay.

         24                 MS. BEDELL: I've had my time and it's

         25  time for me to go. You get all these things, these
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          2  papers --

          3                 MS. GARNER: She's not a well person.

          4  She's got a lot of things. She takes medication.

          5                 MS. BEDELL: I'm still able to walk

          6  around and I want to leave, but I want to leave the

          7  right way.

          8                 MS. GARNER: I know. I understand. I

          9  understand, Marie.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you. And we

         11  do appreciate -- I know that it was difficult for

         12  you to come here today, and we appreciate what you

         13  did. So, thank you.

         14                 MS. GARNER: Thank you all.

         15                 MS. BEDELL: Thank you for listening

         16  to me.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: We will consider

         18  your testimony. And now we'd like to hear from

         19  Simeon Bankoff and Linda Eskenas, and ask you both

         20  to be brief. Thank you.

         21                 MR. BANKOFF: Council members, Simeon

         22  Bankoff, Executive Director of the Historic

         23  Districts Council.

         24                 It is incredibly to painful to these

         25  stories, and my heart goes out to both these owners.
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          2  The question is, however, what is the rule of law

          3  here? This building is indisputably a landmark. No

          4  one is actually saying that it is not landmark

          5  quality, no one is saying it is not historically

          6  architecturally and socially unworthy of being

          7  preserved. That's what we're talking about. We're

          8  talking about that this is one of the last remnants

          9  of Tottenville.

         10                 If you have ever gone down to

         11  Tottenville, you will see that the history of that

         12  entire community has been erased, that this is a

         13  very well preserved section, specimen of

         14  Tottenville, and it is worthy of being landmarked.

         15                 Now, I feel for the owner. I hope

         16  that there will be some sort of social service or

         17  something that will able to work with her to

         18  ameliorate her position and ameliorate her

         19  situation. However, that's not what's on the table.

         20  What's on the table is, does this building deserve

         21  to be a landmark? And I believe it does. Thank you.

         22                 MS. ESKENAS: Okay, first of all, it's

         23  an extraordinary place. If you saw it, you wouldn't

         24  believe it. It's a Greek revival perfect lovely

         25  place. However, dealing with the point, I'm pretty
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          2  appalled. I'm appalled that Mrs. Bedell is being

          3  used. You may have heard of "the Graffiti House?"

          4  Mr. Grossy (phonetic) called on Mrs. Bedell and

          5  scared her and told her how horrible it was to be

          6  landmarked. It's not horrible at all. And why can't

          7  you -- I understand that this realtor wants to sell

          8  the property, but we actually have people who are

          9  preservation oriented who can mark it and

         10  successfully sell this property. Evidently it is not

         11  this lady. She's scaring Mrs. Bedell who is a lovely

         12  woman, as far as I can see. I mean, it's absurd.

         13  Would make no sense whatsoever. And why can't she?

         14  This house can be sold for a lot of money, so why is

         15  there a problem? You have to know how to market it,

         16  like you have to know how to walk. It's very simple.

         17  It's common sense. I mean, it's absurd that we

         18  should be held hostage. And this American heritage,

         19  we need your help, because we cannot lose any more

         20  of our neighborhood.

         21                 It's not okay to devastate other

         22  people's homes and neighborhoods, which is what

         23  happens. And it's not okay to say, oh, it's okay to

         24  landmark in New York, but you can destroy all of

         25  Staten Island, which is just about what has
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          2  happened.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Thank you, Linda,

          4  for your testimony.

          5                 No, I'm sorry, you had an opportunity

          6  to testify. This is not a rebuttal. I'd like to

          7  close the hearing on this item and thank you all for

          8  testifying.

          9                 We're going to vote on all of the

         10  items on the agenda, other than the DeHart House and

         11  the Mark Allen House, and I would like Counsel to

         12  call the roll. I recommend a favorable vote.

         13                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Preconsidered

         14  LU 2006552 SCX; Preconsidered LU 20065560 HKM;

         15  20065520 HKX, which is LU 184 and LU 186, 20065522

         16  HKX.

         17                 Chair Lappin.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: Aye on all.

         19                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         20  Barron.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: So, we're not

         22  voting on the DeHart House and we're not voting on

         23  the Allen House?

         24                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: That is

         25  correct.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Aye on all.

          3                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

          4  Comrie.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Aye to the

          6  items other than the Allen House and the DeHart

          7  House we're not voting on.

          8                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Correct.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: You included

         10  the school?

         11                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Yes, I did.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay, thank

         13  you.

         14                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         15  Palma.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: Aye on all.

         17                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         18  Arroyo.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER ARROYO: Aye.

         20                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         21  Mendez.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MENDEZ: Aye on all.

         23                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: The vote stands

         24  at seven in the affirmative, none in the negative,

         25  for the aforementioned items, with the exception of
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          2  -- for the aforementioned items.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON LAPPIN: We're going to

          4  recess the meeting shortly, and we're going to

          5  reconvene tomorrow morning at 9:45, and we're going

          6  to hold the vote open for five minutes.

          7                 Thank you.

          8                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

          9  Oddo, how do you vote?

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER ODDO: Yes.

         11                 (Hearing recessed at 1:15 p.m.)
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          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter, do hereby certify that the

         11  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         12  within proceeding.

         13                 I further certify that I am not

         14  related to any of the parties to this action by

         15  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         16  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         17                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         18  set my hand this 14th day of August 2006.

         19

         20

         21

         22

         23

                                   ---------------------

         24                          CINDY MILLELOT, CSR.

         25

                                                            93

          1

          2             C E R T I F I C A T I O N

          3

          4

          5

          6

          7

          8

          9            I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified Shorthand

         10  Reporter and a Notary Public in and for the State of

         11  New York, do hereby certify the aforesaid to be a

         12  true and accurate copy of the transcription of the

         13  audio tapes of this hearing.
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